

SEATTLE CITY COUNCIL

600 Fourth Ave. 2nd Floor
Seattle, WA 98104



Journal of the Proceedings of the Seattle City Council

Tuesday, August 4, 2026

2:00 PM

Council Chamber, City Hall

600 4th Avenue

Seattle, WA 98104

City Council

Joy Hollingsworth, Council President

Dionne Foster, Member

Debora Juarez, Member

Robert Kettle, Member

Eddie Lin, Member

Alexis Mercedes Rinck, Member

Maritza Rivera, Member

Rob Saka, Member

Dan Strauss, Member

Chair Info: 206-684-8803; Joy.Hollingsworth@seattle.gov

A. CALL TO ORDER

The City Council of The City of Seattle met in the Council Chamber in City Hall in Seattle, Washington, on August 4, 2026, pursuant to the provisions of the City Charter. The meeting was called to order at 2:05 p.m., with Council President Hollingsworth presiding.

B. ROLL CALL

Present: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

C. PRESENTATIONS

Councilmember Rinck presented a proclamation for signature recognizing Tuesday, August 4th 2026 to be "Seattle and Tacoma Kiki Ballroom Community Day."

The following Councilmembers affixed their signatures to the proclamation:
9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

By unanimous consent, the Council Rules were suspended to allow Councilmember Rinck to present the proclamation, and to allow Julian Everett and Ivy 007 to address the Council.

D. PUBLIC COMMENT

The following individuals addressed the Council:

Alice Green
Evan McWilliams
Eric Zimmerman
Andrea Suarez
Keith Carpenter
Paul Tomlinson
Sam Kim
Lou
Yvette Dinish
Doug Palmer
Nina Jackson
Scott Dickinson
Craig Walker
Frances Nguyen
Patti Hill
Randy Bannecker
Erin Varriano
Angie Mykel
Aliesha Ruiz
Alberto Alvarez
Joe Kunzler
Lois Martin
Rose Legionaires
Iziac Harvey
Magdalena Ware
Iziac Harvey
Jacqueline Ware
Clive Hayward
Jordan Maxim
David Haines
Jeff Rogers
Chad Winfrey
Paul Wang Gosselin
Audrey Wang Gosselin
Hannah Ziff
Michael Woodward
Melissa Palos Phillips
Sam Wolff
Lexi Goss
Eden Quah
Guinevere Godsdottir
Ashley Nerbovig

Elle M. Cree
Ananda Portal
David Long

E. ADOPTION OF INTRODUCTION AND REFERRAL CALENDAR:

[IRC 534](#) **August 4, 2026**

By unanimous consent, the Introduction & Referral Calendar (IRC) was adopted.

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

F. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

By unanimous consent, the Agenda was adopted.

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

Motion was made by Council President Hollingsworth, duly seconded and carried, to adopt the Consent Calendar.

Journal:

1. [Min 578](#) **July 28, 2026**

The Minutes were adopted on the Consent Calendar by the following vote, and the President signed the Minutes (Min):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

Bills:

2. [CB 121265](#) **An ordinance appropriating money to pay certain claims for the week of July 20, 2026, through July 24, 2026, and ordering the payment thereof; and ratifying and confirming certain prior acts.**

The Council Bill (CB) was passed on the Consent Calendar by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

H. COMMITTEE REPORTS

CITY COUNCIL:

1. [CB 121262](#) **An ordinance relating to City employment; adopting a 2026 Citywide Position List.**

Motion was made by Council President Hollingsworth, duly seconded and carried, to pass Council Bill 121262.

The Council Bill (CB) was passed by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None
2. [CB 121264](#) **An ordinance relating to parking payment devices coin revenue collection; amending Section 11.16.480 of the Seattle Municipal Code to transfer responsibility for the physical collection of coin revenue from parking payment devices from the Department of Finance and Administrative Services to the Seattle Department of Transportation.**

Motion was made by Council President Hollingsworth, duly seconded and carried, to pass Council Bill 121264.

The Council Bill (CB) was passed by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

HOUSING, ARTS, AND CIVIL RIGHTS COMMITTEE:

3. [CB 121259](#) **An ordinance relating to unfair housing practices; adding new protections for homeowners from unwanted solicitation of residential property by establishing a Do Not Solicit List; providing an enforcement process; prescribing penalties; amending Section 14.08.020 and 14.08.190 of the Seattle Municipal Code; adding a new Section 14.08.042 to the Seattle Municipal Code; and adding reporting requirements.**

The Committee recommends that City Council pass as amended the Council Bill (CB).

In Favor: 4 - Foster, Lin, Hollingsworth, Rinck

Opposed: None

ACTION 1:

Motion was made by Councilmember Rivera and duly seconded to amend Council Bill 121259, by amending Section 1, revising the definitions of "solicit" and "solicitation," as shown on Attachment 1 to the Minutes.

The Motion carried by the following vote:

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

The Council Bill (CB) was passed as amended by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE:

4. [CB 121248](#) **An ordinance relating to controlled substances; updating City policy for the enforcement of the crimes of knowing possession and use of controlled substances; amending Section 3.28.141 of the Seattle Municipal Code; and repealing Section 4 of Ordinance 126896.**

The Committee recommends that City Council pass as amended the Council Bill (CB).

In Favor: 5 - Kettle, Saka, Juarez, Lin, Rivera

Opposed: None

ACTION 1:

Motion was made by Councilmember Rivera and duly seconded to amend Council Bill 121248, by amending Section 1, as shown on Attachment 2 to the Minutes.

The Motion carried by the following vote:

In Favor: 8 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: 1 - Rinck

The Council Bill (CB) was passed as amended by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

GOVERNANCE AND UTILITIES COMMITTEE:

5. [CB 121247](#) **An ordinance relating to the City Light Department's emergency bill assistance program; amending Section 21.49.042 of the Seattle Municipal Code to adjust program terms and conditions and expand eligibility guidelines for emergency bill assistance.**

The Committee recommends that City Council pass as amended the Council Bill (CB).

In Favor: 5 - Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Rivera, Strauss

Opposed: None

The Council Bill (CB) was passed by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

6. [CB 121245](#) An ordinance relating to rates and charges for water services of Seattle Public Utilities; revising water rates and charges; revising credits to low-income customers; authorizing withdrawal of funds from the Water Fund Revenue Stabilization Subfund; and amending Sections 21.04.430, 21.04.440, and 21.76.040 of the Seattle Municipal Code.

The Committee recommends that City Council pass as amended the Council Bill (CB).

In Favor: 5 - Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Rivera, Strauss

Opposed: None

The Council Bill (CB) was passed by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

7. [CB 121246](#) An ordinance relating to emergency assistance for Seattle Public Utilities customers; amending Section 21.76.065 of the Seattle Municipal Code to adjust program terms and conditions and expand eligibility guidelines for emergency bill assistance.

The Committee recommends that City Council pass as amended the Council Bill (CB).

In Favor: 5 - Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Rivera, Strauss

Opposed: None

The Council Bill (CB) was passed by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

LAND USE AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE:

8. [CB 121243](#) An ordinance relating to land use and zoning; adopting temporary regulations previously in Ordinance 127309 for six months to exempt housing projects that meet Mandatory Housing Affordability requirements using on-site performance units from Design Review, and allowing permit applicants for all housing subject to Full Design Review the option of complying with Design Review pursuant to Administrative Design review; temporarily suspending mandatory, and allowing voluntary, design review of proposed development in Titles 23 and 25 of the Seattle Municipal Code, consistent with Chapter 333, Laws of 2023 and previously in Ordinance 127309; and amending Sections 23.41.002 and 23.41.004 of the Seattle Municipal Code.

The Committee recommends that City Council pass the Council Bill (CB).

In Favor: 4 - Lin, Strauss, Foster, Rinck

Opposed: None

The Council Bill (CB) was passed by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

TRANSPORTATION, WATERFRONT, AND SEATTLE CENTER COMMITTEE:

9. [CB 121242](#) An ordinance granting FH, LLC d/b/a Skyline permission to construct, maintain, and operate a pedestrian skybridge over and across 8th Avenue, south of Columbia Street and north of Cherry Street, in the First Hill neighborhood; and providing for the acceptance of the permit and conditions.

The Committee recommends that City Council pass the Council Bill (CB).

In Favor: 5 - Saka, Rinck, Foster, Kettle, Lin

Opposed: None

The Council Bill (CB) was passed by the following vote, and the President signed the Council Bill (CB):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

10. [CF 314530](#) **Petition of THE YEW, LLC, for the vacation of a portion the alley lying within Block 2, Wegener's Addition to the City of Seattle, being the block bounded by N 87th Street, 1st Avenue NW, Palatine Avenue N, and N 85th Street, at 8623 Palatine Ave N.**

The Committee recommends that City Council grant as conditioned the Clerk File (CF).

In Favor: 5 - Saka, Rinck, Foster, Kettle, Lin

Opposed: None

The Clerk File (CF) was granted as conditioned by the following vote, and the President signed the Conditions of the City Council:

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

I. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR

There were none.

J. ADOPTION OF OTHER RESOLUTIONS

11. [Res 32212](#) **A resolution declaring the intention of the City Council to hold a public hearing relating to clarifying provisions on assessment escalations for the Ballard Business Improvement Area.**

Motion was made by Council President Hollingsworth, duly seconded and carried, to adopt Resolution 32212.

The Resolution (Res) was adopted by the following vote, and the President signed the Resolution (Res):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

12. [Res 32211](#) **A resolution of intention to modify the boundaries and assessment structure of the Capitol Hill Business Improvement Area and fix a date and place for a hearing thereon.**

Motion was made by Council President Hollingsworth, duly seconded and carried, to adopt Resolution 32211.

The Resolution (Res) was adopted by the following vote, and the President signed the Resolution (Res):

In Favor: 9 - Foster, Hollingsworth, Juarez, Kettle, Lin, Rinck, Rivera, Saka, Strauss

Opposed: None

K. OTHER BUSINESS

By unanimous consent, Councilmember Juarez was excused from the August 18, 2026, City Council meeting.

By unanimous consent, Councilmember Saka was excused from the August 18, 2026, City Council meeting.

L. EXECUTIVE SESSION*

At 4:15 p.m., Council President Hollingsworth announced that the Council would convene in Executive Session to discuss pending, potential, or actual litigation with an estimated end time of 5:15 p.m. The Executive Session concluded at 5:06 p.m.

M. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 5:06 p.m.

Jodee Schwinn, Deputy City Clerk

Signed by me in Open Session, upon approval of the Council, on August 11, 2026.

Joy Hollingsworth, Council President of the City Council

Attachment 1 - Action 1 of CB 121259

Attachment 2 - Action 1 of CB 121248

City Council Meeting Minutes of August 4, 2026

Attachment 1 – Action 1 of CB 121259

Screen Reader Users: Make sure settings include reading strikethrough and underline font attributes.

Amendment A Version 1 to CB 121259 – Do Not Solicit ORD

Sponsor: Councilmember Rivera

Exclude generic mailers and flyers from the definition of solicit or solicitation.

Effect: This amendment would exclude bulk commercial mailings from licensed agents and brokers with generic advertisements from the definitions of “solicit” and “solicitation”, so receipt of such generic mailers and flyers while on a Do No Solicit List would not be a violation.

Amend Section 1 of CB 121259 to revise the definitions of “solicit” and “solicitation” as follows:

* * *

“Solicit” or “solicitation” means attempting to sell, purchase, acquire any interest, or convey residential property, through any form of communication to a residential property owner including but not limited to mail, oral communication, or electronic communication.

“Solicit” includes to:

1. Advertise the accomplishments or abilities of a buyer or buyer’s representative to a residential property owner;
2. Request that a residential property owner list a residential property for sale, or inquire if the residential property owner is interested in listing a residential property for sale;
3. Offer or inquire of an interest to offer, whether on the solicitor’s own behalf or another’s behalf, to purchase or acquire any interest in a residential property owner’s residential property; or
4. Provide, or offer to provide, any type of service or assistance to help a residential property owner make a decision about selling a residential property.

The following includes but is not limited to acts that do not constitute solicitation:

1. Communications initiated at the request or invitation of the residential property owner;

2. Solely provide an estimated sale value of a residential property;~~or~~

3. Any action by a person working on behalf of a utility, as defined in Section 23.84A.040, or a government entity;~~or~~

4. Bulk commercial mailings from individuals licensed as Washington State real estate brokers or managing brokers promoting their brokerage services through generic advertisements that, except for the mailing address, do not explicitly reference a specific residential property owner, members of that owner's household, or a specific residential property.

* * *

Attachment 2 – Action 1 of CB 121248

Screen Reader Users: Make sure settings include reading strikethrough and underline font attributes.

Amendment A Version 1 to CB 121248 - City Drug Ordinance Update

Sponsor: Councilmember Rivera

Data on LEAD field-based responses

Effect:

This amendment would require officers to include in the arrest report any attempt to contact diversion service providers for a field-based diversion and indicate the amount of time the officer waited for the in-person transfer of an individual. Officers shall indicate in the arrest report if they left the scene to respond to a more urgent matter, as determined by the officer, based on their assessment of the circumstances and conditions at the time, prior to the in-person transfer of the individual.

Diversion service providers would also be required to record the time it took to respond to an SPD call for diversion services.

Background:

Amendment 2, adopted at the July 28, 2026, meeting of the Public Safety Committee requires SPD officers and diversion service providers to record and report instances when an officer requested a field-based diversion, and the number of times that a diversion service provider responded timely to the request.

This amendment eliminates the word “timely” and instead requires the officer and diversion service providers to record the actual time that it took to respond to an officer’s call for diversion services.

- Amend Section 1 of CB 121248 as follows:

Section 1. Section 3.28.141 of the Seattle Municipal Code, enacted by Ordinance 126896, is amended as follows:

3.28.141 Policies governing ((arrests)) enforcement for knowing possession of a controlled substance and use of a controlled substance in a public place

A. The provisions of this Section 3.28.141 apply to enforcement of RCW 69.50.4013(1), (2), (7), and (8) as amended by 2E2SSB 5536 (68th Legislature, 2023 1st Special Session), Section 2.

B. Policy. Consistent with any public health and safety-related Mayor-issued executive orders, the Seattle Police Department (SPD) will adopt policies governing ~~((arrests for))~~ enforcement related to the crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A. ~~((These new policies will seek to minimize use of force and incorporate de-escalation and crisis intervention that reflect existing SPD policies in those areas. SPD will train its officers on these new policies.~~

~~C. Body worn videos. When officers interact with individuals allegedly committing the crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A, officers shall comply with SPD policies and procedures for body worn video cameras and/or other equipment intended to record officer interactions with the public.~~

~~D))~~ C. Probable cause for arrest. An officer must have probable cause for arrest.

~~((E.))~~ D. Arrest. Nothing in this Section 3.28.141 or in any other provisions of this legislation shall mandate an arrest to occur.

~~((F.))~~ E. Diversion. ~~((Diversion, treatment, and other alternatives to booking are))~~ Field-based, pre-booking diversion through a direct, in-person transfer of an individual ("warm handoff") to recovery service providers who utilize the City's law enforcement diversion framework, which shall include but not be limited to the key elements identified in RCW 71.24.589(4), is the preferred approach when enforcing the crimes adopted under this Section 3.28.141 as described in subsection 3.28.141.A.

1. SPD policies adopted under this Section 3.28.141 will contain guidance on field-based, pre-booking diversion processes and state that in-field diversion and referral to services is the preferred response to crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A. For the purposes of this subsection 3.28.141.E, a field-based, pre-booking diversion includes a direct in person handoff that occurs at a police precinct.

~~((2. SPD policies will state that diversion and referral to services is the preferred response to the crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A.~~

~~3.))~~ 2. A lack of diversion ~~((opportunities))~~ capacity shall not be a reason for arrest, jail booking, or referral for prosecution.

~~((4.))~~ 3. SPD shall collect data and report to the City Council Public Safety and Human Services Committee or its successor that identifies the racial composition of those:

a. Referred for recovery services on a voluntary basis without an arrest;

b. Arrested, released, and referred for prosecution;

c. Arrested and diverted to ~~((community-based))~~ recovery services prior to jail booking or referral for prosecution; and

~~((b.))~~ d. Booked and referred for prosecution.

~~((G.))~~ F. Threat of harm to others. When considering making an arrest, releasing, or diverting an individual, pursuant to subsection 3.28.141.E, officers may determine whether the individual, through their actions and conduct, presents a threat of harm to

others. This determination will occur after probable cause has been established. This determination is based on the totality of the circumstances and the officer's training and experience. SPD policy will identify factors to guide officers when assessing the threat of harm presented by the individual. The threat of harm assessment governs officer decisionmaking and is not an element of the crime to be proved during the prosecution of the crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A and cannot be used as a defense at trial.

((H.)) G. Threat of harm to self

1. If an officer determines there is probable cause to arrest and the officer's assessment indicates that the individual does not pose a threat of harm to others, the individual only poses a threat of harm to self.

2. An officer may attempt to contact and coordinate efforts for diversion, outreach, and other alternatives to arrest. An officer may arrest or take into custody, at the officer's discretion to avoid additional harm to self, including, when appropriate, for the purpose of emergency stabilization and evaluation as authorized under RCW 71.05.153(2). Reasonableness is determined from the perspective of a reasonable officer facing similar circumstances.

3. An officer will not arrest when the individual only poses a threat of harm to self absent articulable facts and circumstances warranting such action.

4. The threat of harm assessment will govern officer decisionmaking and will not be an element of the crime to be proved during the prosecution of the crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A and cannot be used as a defense at trial.

~~((I.))~~ H. Officer safety. Nothing in this Section 3.28.141 is intended to compromise the safety or well-being of police officers.

~~((J.))~~ I. An officer's failure to comply with this Section 3.28.141 shall not render an arrest unlawful if the arrest is otherwise supported by probable cause.

~~((K.))~~ J. Reporting requirements

1. If an officer determines, based on the totality of circumstances, that an arrest is authorized by this Section 3.28.141, an arrest report shall be completed by the officer that includes, at a minimum, the facts establishing probable cause, and, if an assessment was completed under subsection 3.28.141.F, an assessment of the threat presented by the individual, and whether, and in what manner, arrest or diversion was considered or utilized. ~~((Officers shall include in the arrest report any attempt to contact diversion service providers for a field-based diversion and indicate whether such providers were available timely for the in-person transfer of an individual.))~~

Officers shall include in the arrest report any attempt to contact diversion service providers for a field-based diversion and indicate the amount of time officer waited for the in-person transfer of an individual. Officers shall indicate in the arrest report if they left the scene to respond to a more urgent matter, as determined by the officer, based on their assessment of the circumstances and conditions at the time, prior to the in-person transfer of the individual.

2. The Office of Inspector General for Public Safety (OIG) (and/or an independent, academically based research organization engaged by OIG) and SPD shall work with the City Attorney's Office, Seattle Municipal Court, the Seattle Fire

Department, and any other relevant departments to obtain the data described in subsections ~~((3.28.141.L.1))~~ 3.28.141.K.1 through ~~((3.28.141.L.12))~~ 3.28.141.K.12 by January 1, 2025 and annually on January 1 until 2030.

3. To the extent practicable, SPD officers shall collect and record in the department's record management system (RMS) data each contact with an individual in pursuit of enforcement of the crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A and the number of attempts to contact and coordinate efforts for diversion, outreach, and other alternatives to arrest as described in subsection ~~((3.28.141.F))~~ 3.28.141.E. If SPD is unable to collect the data described in this subsection ~~((3.28.141.K.3))~~ 3.28.141.J.3, SPD and OIG shall endeavor to collect such data from service providers.

4. The City shall require that recovery service organizations, ~~((who))~~ with whom the City has entered into a contract to provide law enforcement diversion services, collect and maintain data on officer requests for diversion providers to facilitate a field-based diversion, ~~((the number of times that a diversion service provider responded timely to the))~~ the time it took for providers to respond to such requests, referrals, participation, outcomes, and client demographics, and such data are readily accessible to City departments, including SPD, OIG, the City Auditor, and the Mayor's Office.

~~((L.))~~ K. Annual reporting and recommendations. OIG and/or an independent, academically based research organization engaged by OIG shall review implementation of this Section 3.28.141 to determine the impact of subsections ~~((3.28.141.G))~~ 3.28.141.F and ~~((3.28.141.H))~~ 3.28.141.G, including but not limited to the ability of SPD officers to effectively address incidents described in subsection 3.28.141.A and, based

upon that review, provide recommendations to improve this Section 3.28.141 and related policy. OIG shall also provide recommendations regarding data collection and operationalization of such data collection to improve the City's ability to assess the effectiveness of this legislation. A preliminary report shall be provided to the Council by June 30, 2025. The following data, or an explanation of why the data is unavailable, and written recommendations shall be provided by the OIG to the Council by December 31, 2025, and at least annually by December 31 until 2030:

1. The number of drug overdoses in Seattle on a quarterly basis (including baseline years of 2019 - 2022 and the first three quarters of 2023);

2. ~~((The number of shootings in which drugs were present or an individual was under the influence of drugs within Seattle on a quarterly basis (including baseline years of 2019 - 2022 and the first three quarters of 2023)))~~ The number of incidents marked as involving controlled substances as defined by the Seattle Municipal Code and Revised Code of Washington and in which a firearm was also found;

3. The number of 911 calls about use of controlled substances in a public place on a quarterly basis (including baseline years of 2019 - 2022 and the first three quarters of 2023);

4. The number of documented contacts between police officers, including community service officers, and individuals encountered during enforcement of the crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A;

5. The number of attempts by police officers, including community service officers, to contact and coordinate efforts for diversion, outreach, and other alternatives to arrest as described in subsection ~~((3.28.141.F))~~ 3.28.141.E;

6. The number of arrests for the crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A;

7. The number of individuals transported for booking at jail and of that number: the name of the jail, the number of individuals who are booked into jail, the number of individuals the jail did not accept due to medical declines or for other reasons, the number of individuals transported to a medical facility, including Harborview Medical Center, the number of individuals who are released from a medical facility and then transported to jail, and the number of individuals released without booking into jail or being transported to a medical facility;

8. The number of possession and public use ~~((cases referred))~~ referrals made to the City Attorney's Office for prosecution;

9. The number of ~~((referred cases dismissed before or during trial, including pre-filing diversion cases))~~ cases that the City Attorney's Office diverts pre-file to LEAD in which possession of a controlled substance or public use of a controlled substance is the sole charge;

10. The number of cases that the City Attorney's Office declines to file, for cases in which possession of a controlled substance or public use of a controlled substance is the sole charge;

11. The number of cases that the City Attorney's Office diverts post-file to Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion in which possession of a controlled substance or public use of a controlled substance is the sole charge;

12. The number of cases that the City Attorney's Office dismisses, and the reasons for the dismissal, for cases in which possession of a controlled substance or public use of a controlled substance is the sole charge;

~~((10. The reasons for dismissal of referred cases;~~

~~44.))~~ 13. The results of any interviews of SPD personnel with experience in the field implementing this Section 3.28.141 and their suggestions, if any, for improving the law or related policies, including the feasibility of implementing subsection ~~((3.28.141.G))~~ 3.28.141.F and ~~((3.28.141.H))~~ 3.28.141.G; and

~~((12.))~~ 14. Any other information deemed by OIG as helpful for the purposes of the review required by this subsection ~~((3.28.141.L))~~ 3.28.141.K or providing written recommendations.

~~((M.))~~ L. Based on officer availability, location, and deployment limitations, SPD shall seek to prioritize use of officers who have received at least 40 hours of crisis intervention team (CIT) training when enforcing the crimes described in subsection 3.28.141.A.